5

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

RECEIVED  
OCT 28 2016  
SC Court of Appeals

Appeal From CHARLESTON COUNTY  
COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

Diane S. Goodstein, Circuit Court Judge

Case No.: 2016-000650

Terrell L. McCoy, 256070 ..... Appellant

v.

North Charleston Police Department and Sgt. Thomas  
Deckard, of which, North Charleston Police Department.

is, ..... Respondent

APPELLANT'S FINAL BRIEF

Terrell McCoy  
LEC Edisto 12  
P.O. Box 205  
Ridgeville, SC 29472

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  
In The Court of Appeals

**RECEIVED**

OCT 14 2016

SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON  
COURT OF Common Pleas

Diane Goodstein, Circuit Court Judge

Statement of Issue on Appeal  
Statement of the Case

Facts

Arguments

1. DID THE COURT ERRED BY RULING THAT APPELLANT'S CIVIL ACTION WAS UNTIMELY AND BARRED BY THE 3 YEAR STATUE OF LIMITATION PROVIDED UNDER THE SOUTH CAROLINA TORT ACT? .....

2. DOES S.C. CODE ANN § 15-78-70 (B) RENDER IN-APPLICABLE THE STATUE OF LIMITATION FOUND IN § 15-78-110 .....

Conclusion .....

CASES

Bayle V. S.C. Dept. of transportation, S.C. App. 2001, 344 S.C.  
115, 542 S.E. 2d 736 S.C. Ct App. 2001 . . . . .

Bryan V. Bryan, 220 S.C. 164, 167-68 (1951) 66 S.E. 2d 609 . . . . .

Chewning V. Ford Motor Company, 354 S.C. 72, 579 S.E. 2d 605 . . . . .

Dean V. Buscon Corp, 321 S.C. 360, 363, 468 S.E. 2d 645, 647 (1996).

Evans V. Gunter, 294 S.C. 525, 529, 366 S.E. 2d 44, 46 (1988).

Hilton Head CTR. of South Carolina V. Public Serv. Comm'n, 294 S.C.  
9, 11 362 S.E. 2d 176, 177 (1987).

Hagy V. Pruitt, 339 S.C. 425, 529 S.E. 2d 714 (2000).

Johnston V. Bowen, 313 S.C. 61, 437 S.E. 2d 45 (1993) . . . . .

Joubert V. South Carolina Dept. of Social Services, 341 S.C.  
176, 534 S.E. 2d 1 (Ct. App. 2000):

Rozier V. Ford Motor Co. 573 F. 2d 1332, 1338, (5<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1978).

State V. Kennerly, 357, S.C. 442 (S.C. App. 1998)

True V. Monteith, 327 S.C. 116 (1997) 489 S.E. 2d 615 .

Young V. SCDC, 511 S.E. 2d 413 (S.C. Ct. App. 1999) . . . . .

STATUTES

S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-70 (b)

S.C. Code Ann § 15-78-110

LEGAL MAIL

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. DID THE COURT ERRED BY RULING THAT APPELLANT'S CIVIL ACTION WAS UNTIMELY AND BARRED BY THE 3 THREE-YEAR STATUTE OF LIMITATION PROVIDED UNDER THE SOUTH CAROLINA TORT ACT?

2. DOES S.C. CODE ANN. § 15-78-70 (b) RENDER INAPPLICABLE THE STATUTE OF LIMITATION FOUND IN § 15-78-110

~~3. DOES THE LANGUAGE OF § 15-78-70 (b) RENDER INAPPLICABLE THE STATUTE OF LIMITATION FOUND IN § 15-78-110 DETERMINING IT WOULD BE APPLICABLE TO A TORT ACTION?~~

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant was indicted by the Charleston County grand jury for murder. Appellant's first trial ended in a hung jury. Lorelle Proctor represented appellant during that trial.

A pre-trial hearing was held on January 27, 2009 before the Honorable R. Markley Dennis, Jr. where appellant expressed desire to represent himself.

Appellant's case was then called to trial on February 2, 2009, before the Honorable Roger M. Young, Sr., and a jury. Appellant represented himself. Lorelle Proctor was stand by Counsel.

At the conclusion of the trial on February 6, 2009, the jury found the appellant guilty of murder. Judge Young sentenced the appellant to fifty years imprisonment.

An Appeal was filed.

The South Carolina Court of Appeals denied Appellant's appeal in November of 2011. Robert Dudek represented Appellant. Appellate Counsel filed a petition for rehearing, which was denied on December 19, 2011.

Appellate Counsel filed a petition for writ of certiorari in the South Carolina Supreme Court which was denied on March 6, 2013.

In June 20, 2014, while Appellant learned through Interrogatories received by attorney Beth Woodall and Francis Austin, attorneys for North Charleston Police Department, that evidence (all tape recording was destroyed and never produce to Appellant pursuant to South Carolina Rules of Criminal Procedure Rule (5).

Appellant filed a civil action against North Charleston Police Department and Detective Sergeant Thomas Dechard in 2014.

On May 7, 2015, a motion to dismiss the civil action was held. The Honorable J. C. Nicholson presided. [See May 7, 2015 hearing transcript mark as Exhibit 1

Robin Jackson and Kevin DeAntonio represented respondents. At the conclusion of the hearing, Judge Nicholson dismiss the

---

1. While Appellant was waiting for an decision on Appeal, he moved in good faith seeking discovery from North Charleston Police Department pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act.

the Civil action.

Appellant filed an timely SCRPC Rule 59(e), and a hearing was held on December 2, 2015. The Honorable Diane S. Goodstein presided. Appellant appeared pro se, and Kevin DeAntonio and Robin Jackson represented the respondents. [see December 2, 2015 hearing transcript mark as Exhibit]

This Appeal followed.

## Relevant Facts

## ARGUMENT

### I

DID THE COURT ERRED BY RULING THAT APPELLANT'S CIVIL ACTION WAS UNTIMELY AND BARRED BY THE THREE YEAR STATUE OF LIMITATION PROVIDED UNDER THE SOUTH CAROLINA TORT ACT?

DOES S.C. CODE ANN. § 15-78-70 (b) RENDER INAPPLICABLE THE STATUE OF LIMITATION FOUND IN § 15-78-110?

At the May 7, 2015 hearing held before Judge Nicholson, the respondents told Judge Young that Appellant's claim was barred by the three year statute provided under the S.C. code Ann § 15-78-110. "See May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page 2 Line 10-11; page 3 line 7-20."

Kevin DeAntonio represented Respondents.

During the hearing, Mr. De Antonio stated "The solicitor failed to produce a 911 tape, but I guess the suit is against the North Charleston Police Department and the detective." May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page 3 Line 7-9."

Mr. De Antonio then told the judge that the statute of limitation began

to run February 2009 when Appellant was convicted. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page 18-20."

Appellant then told Judge Nicholson that he was convicted February 6, 2009, and his standby attorney filed a timely appeal. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page 6 line 21-24."

Appellant then explained to the judge "The remittitur was issued to the lower court on March 8, 2013, affirming his loss of liberty." "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page 7 line 11-18."

Appellant told the judge that during his second trial he was never told that the 911 tape recording was destroyed. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (7) Line 24-25; (8) line 1-25"

Appellant then stated "I didn't actually find out that the 911 tape recording was destroyed until I filed a lawsuit against respondents, and received my Interrogatories on June 20, 2014." "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page 10 Line 3-5; **See Also Appellant's 2<sup>nd</sup> Interrogatories page 2 question 2 + 3**

Judge Nicholson then asked Appellant "When did you find out it was destroyed." "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page 10 line 2-15."

Judge Nicholson also wanted to know **HOW** the 911 tape recording could have helped Appellant. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript ~~page 11 line 7-15~~; page 12 Line 7-9."

Appellant then explained that the 911 tape recording contradicts the State Witness, Carinda Williams Snowden, trial testimony and could have been used to impeach the witness. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page ~~11~~ 11 Line 7-22; page 12 Line 10-17."

Judge Nicholson asked Appellant did he mention the 911 tape recording destruction in his PCB application. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (9) Line 7-25."

Appellant then told Judge Nicholson the 911 tape recording was not mentioned because he had known know at his second trial that the tape had been destroyed, and he had not discover the spoliation until he filed a civil action against Respondent for failing to respond to FOIA request pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act. May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (10) Line 3-5; page (13) Line 20-25; page (14) Line 1-25; page (15) Line 1-4<sup>99</sup>

Appellant tried twice to give Judge Nicholson copies of Interrogatories, received from Respondents, to be admitted into the record and the Judge refuse. " May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (15) Line 24-25; page (16) Line 1-4; page (15) Line 1-25<sup>99</sup>

Judge Nicholson then asked Mr. DeAntonio, " when do you think you first found out about the tape? " May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (16) Line 6-7.

Mr. DeAntonio explained the public defender requested and received the SCR Crimp Rule 5 Motion sometime between April of 2006 - There was a Summary of what the 911 tape said, so that's when they became aware that there was a tape and they requested a copy of the actual recording. May 7, hearing transcript page (16) Line 13-16; page (16) Line 17-18.

Mr. DeAntonio continued and allege Appellant knew in 2008 that he did not have the tape, that it existed. ( May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (17) Line 5-25 )

Mr. DeAntonio mis informed Judge Nicholson that there was a motion hearing held specifically for the State to produce the 911 tape recording. " May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (17) Line 5-25.

Judge Nicholson then asked, " what was the judges ruling? " May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (18) Line 4

Mr. De Antonio did not have a copy of Appellant's second trial transcript, and could not tell the judge what the trial judge's ruling was. May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (18) (5-25)

Judge Nicholson then told Mr. De Antonio, "I'm trying to determine when he actually knew it was destroyed. So I need to know what happened in that camera hearing. May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (19) Line (1-5)

Appellant then gave a copy of his transcript pages to the judge for review. Appellant explained that the motion hearing was not for the 911 tape recording. May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (19) Line 14-24

Judge Nicholson then read the transcript from the second trial and stated, "Having read the transcript from the second trial during the camera hearing; I think it's pretty clear on page 635 line 25: May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page (20) Line 15-25

The Court: From what I understand, it doesn't exist. Mr. Proctor said back when she used to represent you her office tried to obtain it and were informed it didn't exist, so again, it one of those deals where if you had it, I would let you play it; however, it doesn't exist. I can't create it. Okay?

Judge Nicholson then granted Respondent's motion and dismissed the case.

During the Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment, held on December 2, 2015, Appellant introduced exhibits, into the record, which was never marked by the Court-reporter. "December 2, 2015 hearing page (4) Line 21-25; page (5) Line 6-7; page (5) Line 24-25; page (6) Line 24.

Appellant then explained his case to Judge Goodstein. "December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (4) Line 9-25; page (5) Line 1-25; page (6) Line 1-25; and page (7) 1-25.

Appellant explained when he was put on notice that a right of his had been violated, and a cause of action existed. Appellant told Judge Goodstein, that

Appellant's claim was dismissed b/c Judge Nicholson was misinformed when Appellant learned the 911 tape recording was destroyed at his retrial. See "December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (7) Line 18-19."

Appellant then read portions of his second trial transcript into the record where Judge Nicholson based his ruling on. "December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (6) Line ~~2-4~~ 1-4"

Appellant then told Judge Goodstein. "If Plaintiff was made aware of the spoliation during the retrial, he could have requested a jury charge on spoliation of evidence. The respondents did not rebut the fact that the Jury did not receive instruction on Spoliation." December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (6) Line 4-8."

Appellant then explained to the Court the meaning of the words "Exist" and "Destroyed." "The word exist in the American Heritage College Dictionary 3<sup>d</sup> edition means to be present under certain circumstances or in a specified place occur. Latin term E-X-I-S-T-E-R-E, E-X-I-S-T-E-R-E. to come forth be manifest, or to stand." December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (7) Line 8-12."

Appellant explained that destruction means the act of destroying or demolishing, the ruining of something. Appellant also explained that the solicitor, during the second trial, stated that the evidence did not exist. "December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (7) Line 19-25; page (8) Line 1-3"

Judge Goodstein then stated, "In other words just to be sure in following you, in other words, what you're talking about is there is a difference between evidence not existing and evidence being destroyed." December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (8) Line 1-25; page (9) 1-5"

Appellant explained to the Court, that while his appeal was pending in

~~the appellate Court, he in good faith search by due diligence through different law enforcement agencies seeking the whereabouts of the 911 tape recording.~~  
December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page: (9) Line 17-21; page: 10 Line 3-18

Judge Goodstein then asked, "when you're talking about having served -- you did a couple of things, you made some Freedom of Information request." December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page: (10) Line 22-25; page (11) Line 1-25

Appellant then explained when he learned the evidence was destroyed. Judge Goodstein then asked, "It doesn't exist what does that mean? Does it mean it was destroyed? Does it mean it never existed that there was a malfunction of the 911 system etcetera." December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page: 16 Line 1-10.

Mr. DeAntonio then stated that the Appellant had in his possession of the dispatcher's report, which gave a brief description of the 911 call made, so they knew the call existed during February of 2009. "December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page: (17) Line 14-23"

Mr. DeAntonio then explained to the Court, "Mr. Wetmore told the judge he never heard the 911 tape and that the tape recording was kept for a certain period and then they are destroyed." "December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page (18) Line 7-14."

Judge Goodstein then inquired about when the 911 tape recording was mentioned. "December 2, 2015 hearing transcript page: (19) Line 26

At the conclusion of the hearing Judge Goodstein did not make a ruling. December 2, 2015 hearing transcript pages 19-26. Appellant received a order notice, by mail, that the Judge denied the Rule 59(e) motion.

## Discussion

The statute of limitation of the tort act runs from the date the

Injured party either knows or should have known by the exercise of reasonable diligence that a cause of action arises from the wrongful conduct. Bayle v. S.C. Dept of Transportation, SC. app. 2001, 344 S.C. 115, 542 S.E.2d 736 S.C. Ct app. 2001 . . . . . True v. Monteith, 327 S.C. 116 (1997) 489 S.E.2d 615; ~~Joubert v. South Carolina Dept of Social Services, 348 S.C. 176, 534 S.E.2d 1 (Ct. App. 2000)~~

The date on which discovery of the cause of action should have been made is an objective, rather than subjective question. See Joubert v. South Carolina Dept of Social Services, 341 S.C. 176, 534 S.E.2d 1 (Ct. App. 2000)

In Dean v. Buscon Corp., 321 S.C. 360, 468 S.E.2d 645 (1996), the Supreme Court explicated:

According to the discovery rule, the statute of limitation begins to run when a cause of action reasonably ought to have been discovered. The statute runs from the date the injured party either knows or should have known by the exercise of reasonable diligence that a cause of action arises from the wrongful conduct. We have interpreted the "exercise of reasonable diligence" to mean that the injured party must act with some promptness where the facts and circumstances of an injury place a reasonable person of common knowledge and experience on notice that a claim against another party might exist. Moreover, the fact that the injured party may not comprehend the full extent of the damage is immaterial.

First, the evidence in the record shows that during Appellant's second trial, there was an in camera hearing held concerning the "lost" witness: North Charleston Police Department dispatcher Jene Fowler. See Exhibit (4): Mark as Portion of Appellant's Second trial transcript page: 631 Line

During the in camera hearing, Appellant made arguments concerning a witness that was subpoenaed and had not appeared to court. Judge Roger Young, the presiding judge, asked that since the dispatcher was not present, did the state or defense have the 911 tape recording. Appellant stated he had subpoenaed the 911 tape recording. "Portions of Appellant's Second trial transcript page: <sup>633</sup> ~~633~~ Line 1."

There was discussions made by Appellant's attorney that she had requested a 911 tape recording from previous solicitor and never received the 911 tape recording. "Portions of Appellant Second trial transcript page: 633 Line 10-14; page: (634) Line 12-17."

The Solicitor, Burns Wetmore, stated he never heard a 911 tape recording, He just knew from experience as being a officer of Court, that recordings are kept for certain periods, and then destroyed "Portion of Appellant Second trial transcript page: (634) Line 1-9."

He further stated he never ~~checked~~ asked for it, nor subpoenaed the 911 tape, so he had no factual evidence that the 911 tape recording was actually destroyed or stored in evidence at the Police Department during Appellant's second trial.

During Appellant's Second trial, at the in camera hearing, Judge Young stated the following: "I understand, but from what I understand, it doesn't exist. Miss Proctor said back when she used to represent you, her office tried to obtain it, and they were informed it didn't exist. So again, its one of those deals where if you had it, I would let you play it probably, but if it doesn't exist, I can't create it. Okay." Second trial transcript page: (635) Line 25 page: 636 Line 1-6.

The languages did not exist, and can't create it, used by Judge Young is evidence the court may have been under the assumption the 911 tape -

recording didn't exist. Also the Respondent did not produce any evidence to show that the trial Judge instructed the Jury on Spoilation, ~~Appellant~~ during Appellant's second trial. ~~When~~ If there was evidence of spoilation, the jury would have been given spoilation charges.

In this case, the circumstances of the case did not put Appellant, on notice that some right of his was invaded, or that some claim against another party might exist. The Solicitor admitted he had never requested or subpoenaed the 911 tape recording, so he had never seek the evidence although Appellant's attorney requested for the 911 tape recording.

~~In a criminal matter, where as~~

The Solicitor had no factual knowledge that the 911 tape recording had been destroyed. Nor did the record show that Appellant was told the 911 tape recording was destroyed and given a date the evidence was destroyed.

In Bayle v. SC Dept of Transportation Supra. The Court explained that the litigant has to be put on notice that some right of his was invaded, or that some claim against another party might exist. In Bayle, this court stated the date on which discovery of the cause of action should have been made is an objective, rather than subjective, question. Jourbert, Supra; Young, Supra

In this case, the state failed to admit evidence was destroyed at trial. Appellant was under assumption that the 911 tape recording did not exist, and did not include it into his PCR application. Judge Nicholson reviewed, Appellant's PCR application, and verified it had not been raised in Appellant's PCR application. Appellant also explained he was not informed that the 911 tape recording was destroyed, the indictment, was never dismissed. " See MAY 7, 2015 hearing transcript page: (8) Line 24-25; page 9 Line 1-25; page: 10 Line 1-25

This record was insufficient to show that Appellant was placed on notice that a right had been invaded during his second trial held on February 2, 2009 in order to establish that the civil action was barred by the statute of limitation provided by the S.C. Code Ann §

Does S.C. Code Ann § 15-78-70(b) Render Inapplicable the statute of limitation found in § 15-78-110

~~S.C. Code Ann § 15-78-70(b) states:~~

During the May 7, 2015 hearing held in front of Judge Nicholson, Mr. DeAntonio stated the Solicitor failed to produce a 911 tape recording, but I guess this suit is against the North Charleston Police Department and the detective. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page: (3) Line 7-20

The Respondents, throughout the hearings, never rebutted the fact that the evidence was destroyed in violation of Appellant's constitutional rights.

Judge Nicholson asked was the 911 tape recording available at the first trial, and the Respondents stated it was never produced at all. "May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page: (6) Line 8-11; page: (18) Line 7-11.

## DISCUSSION

Chewing v. Ford Motor Company, 354 S.C. 72, 579 S.E. 2d 605 Id. at 78, 579 S.E. 2d at 608 (citing Rozier v. Ford Motor Co., 573 F.2d 1332, 1338 5th Cir. 1978) Extrinsic fraud induces a person not to present a case or deprives a person of the opportunity to be heard. Id at 81, 579 S.E. 2d at 610 (citing Hilton Head Ctr. of South Carolina v. Public Serv. Comm'n, 294 S.C. 9, 11 362 S.E. 2d 176, 177 (1987). On the other hand, intrinsic fraud "is fraud which was presented and considered in the trial" and which misleads a court in determining issues and induces the court to find for the party perpetrated by officers the fraud." Id. (citing Hagy v. Pruitt, 339 S.C. 425, 529

S.E.2d 714 (2000); Hilton Head CTR. 294 S.C. at 49, 262 S.E.2d at 176

The essential distinction between intrinsic and extrinsic fraud is the ability to discover the fraud. Equitable relief from judgment "is granted for extrinsic fraud on the theory that because the fraud prevented a party from fully exhibiting and trying his case, there has never been a real contest before the Court on the ~~summary~~ subject matter of the action." <sup>89</sup> Id. See also Bryan v. Bryan, 220 S.C. 164, 167-68, 66 S.E.2d 609, 610 (1951)

In this case, Appellant argued that the Respondents committed the act of Extrinsic fraud, and therefore the statute of limitation does not apply, and Appellant has named an individual defendant in the civil action.

During the May 7, 2015 and December 2, 2015 hearing held, Appellant argued that the destruction of the 911 tape recording by the Respondent constituted negligence. In more words, Appellant stressed the point that the destruction of 911 tape recording prevented him from fully exhibiting and trying his case.

The record supports this argument as Judge Nicholson asked Appellant, "How would that 911 tape have made any difference whether you were involved in the shooting or not?" <sup>93</sup> <sup>46</sup> May 7, 2015 hearing transcript page: (12) (7-20); page: (11) (1-25)"

It is evident, the destruction of the 911 tape recording prevented Appellant from presented a full defense in his criminal case. The Respondents did not rebut the facts presented at the hearing that Respondents destroyed

the 911 tape recording preventing Appellant from fully exhibiting and trying his case.

The South Carolina Supreme Court stated in Chewning V. Ford Motor Company, Supra. "Where an attorney - an officer of the court - suborns perjury or intentionally conceals documents, he or she effectively precludes the opposing party from having his day in court.

If this court would review portions of Appellant's second trial transcript pages: (634) Line (20-25), and the Verified Complaint, Appellant allege fraud against NEPD. Appellant's standby Counsel stated she requested the tape from the Solicitor's office. The Solicitor ~~intentionally~~ <sup>intentionally</sup> concealed material from the Appellant, as evidence shows that the Solicitor stated, "He did not request nor subpoena the 911 tape recording." See Portions of Appellant's second trial transcript page: (634) Line (8-9)

In a criminal proceeding the United States Supreme Court stated the following: The prosecution has the duty to disclose regardless of whether the defendant makes a specific request. This rule extends to evidence that is not in the actual possession of the prosecution but known by others acting on the government's behalf in the particular case, including the Police. United States V. Bagley, 473 U.S. 667, 105 S.Ct. 3375, 87 L.Ed. 2d 481 (1985); State V. Kennerly, 357 S.C. 442 (S.C. App. 1998)

If Appellant made the specific request, and the Solicitor

failed to disclose the evidence, then his actions as well as the Respondents constituted extrinsic fraud.

Extrinsic fraud deprives a person the opportunity to be heard. Relief is granted for extrinsic fraud on the theory that because the fraud prevented a party from fully exhibiting his case. Hilton Head Ctr. of South Carolina v. Public Serv. Comm'n, 294 S.C. 9, 11, 362 S.E.2d 176, 177 (1987).

Although this is a civil action, the facts of the case stem from a criminal proceeding. Sergeant Thomas Deckard was present throughout the entire trial. The Respondents never indicated that the 911 tape recording was destroyed nor did the Solicitor request the evidence from the Respondents after receiving a SCRCrimP Rule (5) motion (Exhibit #10).

Appellant stated the Respondents committed fraud during in Verified Complaint. "SEE Appellant's Complaint filed AS EXHIBIT (5). The Respondents did not file an answer and defaulted.

For these reasons stated above, Appellant should be granted a new hearing.

October  
~~September 5~~, 2016

151 Jewell McCoy