THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Diane S. Goodstein, Circuit Court Judge

Case No.: 2016-000650

RECEIVED

FEB 24 2017

SC Court of Appeals

Terrell L McCoy, 256070, Appellant

v.

North Charleston Police Department and
Sgt. Thomas Deckard, of which, North
Charleston Police Department is, Respondent

RESPONDENT'S FINAL BRIEF

Sandra J. Senn
Kevin M. DeAntonio

ROBIN L. JACKSON
SC BAR 16948
Senn Legal, LLC
P.O. Box 12279
Charleston, SC 29422
843-556-4045
fax: 843-556-4046
Robin@SennLegal.com

Attorney for Respondent

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

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY GRANTED DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO DISMISS BECAUSE THE APPELLANT MISSED THE APPLICABLE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

"Statutes of limitations are not simply technicalities." *Stokes Craven Holding Corp. v. Robinson*, 787 S.E.2d 485, 490 (S.C. 2016) citing *Kelly v. Logan, Jolley & Smith, L.L.P.*, 383 S.C. 626, 632, 682 S.E.2d 1, 4 (Ct.App.2009). "One purpose of a statute of limitations is to relieve the courts of the burden of trying stale claims when a plaintiff has slept on his or her rights." *Id.* (citations omitted). "Another purpose of a statute of limitations is to protect potential defendants from protracted fear of litigation." *Id.* "Statutes of limitations are, indeed, fundamental to our judicial system." *Id.* (citation omitted).

"The primary rule of statutory construction is to ascertain and give effect to the intent of the legislature." *Kerr v. Richland Memorial Hosp.*, 678 S.E.2d 809, 811, 383 S.C. 146,

149 (S.C. 2009); citing *Mid-State Auto Auction of Lexington, Inc. v. Altman*, 324 S.C. 65, 69, 476 S.E.2d 690, 692 (1996) (*citation omitted*). The General Assembly has stated its intent in the Tort Claims Act through §15-78-200, which provides:

Notwithstanding any provision of law, this chapter, the "South Carolina Tort Claims Act", is the exclusive and sole remedy for any tort committed by an employee of a governmental entity while acting within the scope of the employee's official duty. The provisions of this chapter establish limitations on and exemptions to the liability of the governmental entity and must be liberally construed in favor of limiting the liability of the governmental entity.

S.C. CODE ANN §15-78-200.

The statute of limitations for a claim related to the tort of a governmental employee is also established by the Tort Claims Act – “any action brought pursuant to this chapter is forever barred unless an action is commenced within two years after the date the loss was or should have been discovered.” S.C. CODE ANN. § 15-78-110. In this case, the appellant was on notice of the existence of a 911 recording as early as 2006 when his attorney received the Computer Automated Dispatch (CSD) Report, and most certainly in February, 2009, when he and his attorney addressed the court in his second criminal trial, regarding the recording.

MS. PROCTOR: We had tried three years ago to find the dispatch tape. We never were able to get the 911 tape, and I don't believe the solicitor's office ever had the 911 tape either. All we have are the writings of what was on – what was said during the dispatch, saying a female said the door was kicked in.

R. 83, lines 10-17

The appellant's criminal attorney admitted to the court that she had known there was a

recording since 2006. Apparently, there was no mention of the recording during the first trial. During the February 2009 trial, it came to light that although it had been made, as evidenced by the CAD, the recording was no longer in existence.

MR. WETMORE: I have never heard a 911 tape. I know they're kept for a certain period of time and then they're destroyed. It's all digital, to my understanding, and certainly three years have passed. I don't know if it's there or not, but I don't have it.

THE COURT: Have you checked with North Charleston to see if they have it?

MR. WETMORE: I have not asked for it, nor have I subpoenaed, no, sir.

(R. 84, lines 1-9)

The facts and circumstances were sufficient to place a reasonable person on notice that a claim might exist, whether or not he comprehended the full extent of the damage. *Dean v. Ruscon Corp.*, 321 S.C. 360 (1996). Therefore, the statute of limitations for any civil action begins to run, at the latest, from February, 2009 and expired in February 2011. This action was filed in February 2015, four years after the statute of limitations expired. (R. 7).

II. S.C. CODE ANN. §15-78-70(B) IS NOT APPLICABLE TO THE APPELLANT'S CLAIMS AGAINST NORTH CHARLESTON.

Appellant asserts that SC Code Ann. §15-78-70(b) renders the statute of limitations contained in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, inapplicable. This is not correct. Although appellant makes vague allegations of intrinsic and extrinsic fraud in his brief, there is no evidence that anyone at either the North Charleston Police Department or the North

Charleston Dispatch ever received any request for the recording of the 911 call, and no evidence that the recording was destroyed for any reason other than being recorded over in the normal course. The on the record discussion between counsel and the court shows that the recording was never requested from North Charleston by the Solicitor's Office. (R. 84, lines 8-9). The appellant, in his complaint, has not alleged any facts that would support a claim for any type of fraud by the defendants. Therefore the applicable statute of limitations is two (2) years, though the appellant has missed the three (3) year statute of limitations for tort claims against non-governmental entities as well.

III. WHETHER THE KNOWLEDGE THAT THE 911 TAPE NO LONGER EXISTED IN 2009 PROVIDED THE APPELLANT WITH THE OPPORTUNITY TO EXERCISE REASONABLE DILIGENCE TO DISCOVER WHETHER HE HAD A CAUSE OF ACTION.

Inmate McCoy takes the position that there is some distinction between the words "exist" and "destroyed" such that he was not on notice about the status of the 911 tape. This is disingenuous at best. McCoy admits that he and his criminal attorney, Ms. Proctor received a summary of the 911 call before his first trial. That is when they had actual knowledge that there was a recording. This occurred in April, 2006. (R. 32, lines 8-22). The recording was recorded over in the normal course on or about June 25, 2006. The appellant asserts that his attorney sent a Brady Motion to the solicitor in April, 2006, but there is no evidence that the requests in the Brady Motion were ever sent from the solicitor's office to the North Charleston Police Department or the Dispatch Center. There is no evidence that North Charleston had any notice of the request before the recording was recorded over. Assistant

Solicitor Wetmore acknowledge in February, 2009 “I have not asked for it, nor have I subpoenaed, no, sir. (R. 84, lines 8-9). The appellant acknowledged during his argument on the motion to reconsider that Burns Wetmore told the court in 2009 that “He never checked for a tape.” (R. 60, lines 15-16). If assistant solicitor Wetmore never checked for a tape, North Charleston would not have been on notice that the recording needed to be maintained.

The appellant’s argument during the motion to reconsider was that he could not bring a claim about something that never existed, and he did not find out it was destroyed until much later. However, during the hearing in 2009, the appellant knew the tape had existed at one point, because (1) he had the Computer Automated Dispatch (CAD) report, which details the technical aspects of the 911 call, received in 2006; (2) Lorelle Proctor told the court that she had requested it, been told it was coming, and then there was a delay and by the time she realized she did not have it, it had been recorded over in the normal course; (3) the appellant and his attorney intended to call the dispatcher who had handled the call to testify about it; and (4) the solicitor told the court that the normal process is to only keep the recordings for a short period of time before they are destroyed by being recorded over in the normal course. This is all information that put the appellant and his attorney on notice, in 2009, to do further investigation to see what had happened to the recording. A reasonable person would have been on notice to do further investigation to find out when and how the recording stopped existing. (R. 55, lines 7-8).

To the extent that the appellant asserts that he did investigate to find out what happened with the recording, it was also untimely. Appellant did not send his initial Freedom of Information Act request until four (4) years after the re-trial had concluded (September

2013). (Supp. R. 89, ¶6).² According to the discovery rule, the statute of limitations begins to run when a cause of action reasonably ought to have been discovered. The statute runs from the date the injured party either knows or should have known by the exercise of reasonable diligence that a cause of action arises from the wrongful conduct. *Johnston v. Bowen*, 313 S.C. 61, 437 S.E.2d 45 (1993). *Burgess v. Am. Cancer Soc'y, S.C. Div., Inc.*, 300 S.C. 182, 186, 386 S.E.2d 798, 800 (Ct.App.1989); see S.C. Code Ann. § 5-3-535 (2005) The courts have interpreted the “exercise of reasonable diligence” to mean that the injured party must act **with some promptness** where the facts and circumstances of an injury place a reasonable person of common knowledge and experience on *notice* that a claim against another party **might** exist. *Snell v. Columbia Gun Exchange, Inc.*, 276 S.C. 301, 278 S.E.2d 333 (1981). Moreover, the fact that the injured party may not comprehend the full extent of the damage is immaterial. *Dillon County School Dist. No. Two v. Lewis Sheet Metal Works, Inc.*, 286 S.C. 207, 332 S.E.2d 555 (Ct.App.1985), *cert. granted*, 287 S.C. 234, 337 S.E.2d 697 (1985), *cert. dismissed*, 288 S.C. 468, 343 S.E.2d 613 (1986). The phrases “with some promptness” and “claim against another party might exist” are very important.

The appellant did not act with any promptness, waiting more than four (4) years before inquiring about the recording that he was clearly made aware of during the second trial in 2009. The appellant has put forth no reason for this delay and has provided no basis under which the statute of limitations would have been tolled.